
TITLE 848 INDIANA STATE BOARD OF NURSING

Final Rule

LSA Document #22-111(F)

DIGEST

Amends [848 IAC 7-1-1](#), [848 IAC 7-1-2](#), and [848 IAC 7-1-3](#) to remove the term "abstinence based". Amends [848 IAC 7-1-6](#), requiring the treatment plan referenced in the recovery monitoring agreement (RMA) to be evidence based. Effective 30 days after filing with the Publisher.

[848 IAC 7-1-1](#); [848 IAC 7-1-2](#); [848 IAC 7-1-3](#); [848 IAC 7-1-6](#)

SECTION 1. [848 IAC 7-1-1](#) IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

[848 IAC 7-1-1](#) Definitions

Authority: [IC 25-23-1-7](#)

Affected: [IC 25-23-1-1.1](#); [IC 25-23-1-1.2](#); [IC 25-23-1-31](#)

Sec. 1. The following definitions apply throughout this article:

- (1) "Board" means the Indiana state board of nursing.
- (2) "Indiana State Nurses Assistance Program" or "ISNAP" means ~~an abstinence-based~~ a program for the rehabilitation and monitoring of:
 - (A) impaired registered nurses; or
 - (B) licensed practical nurses;that have been affected by the personal use or abuse of alcohol or other drugs.
- (3) "IPLA" means the Indiana professional licensing agency.
- (4) "Nurse" means either of the following:
 - (A) Registered nurse as defined in [IC 25-23-1-1.1](#).
 - (B) Licensed practical nurse as defined in [IC 25-23-1-1.2](#).
- (5) "Recovery monitoring agreement" or "RMA" means the written document establishing the terms for an individual registered nurse's or licensed practical nurse's participation in the ~~abstinence-based~~ rehabilitation monitoring program.
- (6) "Treatment program" means ~~an abstinence-based~~ a program or facility that is accredited by any of the following:
 - (A) The Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations (JCAHO).
 - (B) Other appropriate agencies that accredit addiction treatment programs, including, but not limited to, the following:
 - (i) The Commission on Accreditation for Rehabilitation Facilities (CARF).
 - (ii) The Council on Accreditation of Services for Families and Children (COA).
 - (iii) The Health Facilities Accreditation Program (HFAP).
 - (iv) The Indiana Family and Social Services Administration (FSSA).
 - (v) The Indiana ~~State~~ Department of Health (~~ISDH~~); **(IDOH)**.

(Indiana State Board of Nursing; [848 IAC 7-1-1](#); filed Jan 23, 2006, 8:35 a.m.: 29 IR 1927; readopted filed Nov 9, 2012, 11:23 a.m.: [20121205-IR-848120387RFA](#); readopted filed Dec 14, 2018, 2:43 p.m.: [20190109-IR-848180373RFA](#); filed Mar 6, 2023, 9:05 a.m.: [20230405-IR-848220111FRA](#))

SECTION 2. [848 IAC 7-1-2](#) IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

[848 IAC 7-1-2](#) Eligibility

Authority: [IC 25-23-1-7](#)

Affected: [IC 25-23-1-31](#)

Sec. 2. (a) A nurse who has been affected by the personal use or abuse of alcohol or other drugs is eligible for participation in ISNAP if the nurse:

- (1) is licensed by the board;
- (2) has:
 - (A) applied for:

- (i) licensure by examination;
 - (ii) licensure by endorsement; or
 - (iii) reinstatement of a lapsed license; or
- (B) submitted a renewal application.

(b) In order to participate in ISNAP, the nurse must sign an ~~abstinence-based~~ RMA with ISNAP. Failure to comply with the terms of the RMA may subject the nurse to termination from participation in ISNAP.

(c) A nurse shall maintain an active Indiana nursing license to be and to remain eligible for participation in ISNAP. A nurse who allows the nurse's license to lapse while enrolled in ISNAP shall be terminated from participation in ISNAP until the nurse's license is renewed. A nurse whose license is revoked may no longer participate in ISNAP at the expense of the state of Indiana.

(d) A nurse who holds:

- (1) an Indiana nursing license; and
- (2) a nursing license in another state;

but practices in another state shall be monitored by the state in which the nurse practices if the other state has a monitoring program.

(e) If a nurse is being monitored by another state's program, the nurse shall be responsible for causing the monitoring program in the other state to submit copies of that program's monitoring reports to the board and adherence information requested if the nurse has had disciplinary action imposed on the nurse's license by the Indiana board.

(f) A nurse who practices in another state that does not have a monitoring program is eligible for monitoring by ISNAP if the nurse maintains an active Indiana license.

(g) A nurse who signs an RMA with ISNAP and begins practicing in another state shall be monitored by the other state unless the other state does not have a monitoring program.

(Indiana State Board of Nursing; [848 IAC 7-1-2](#); filed Jan 23, 2006, 8:35 a.m.: 29 IR 1927; readopted filed Nov 9, 2012, 11:23 a.m.: [20121205-IR-848120387RFA](#); readopted filed Dec 14, 2018, 2:43 p.m.: [20190109-IR-848180373RFA](#); filed Mar 6, 2023, 9:05 a.m.: [20230405-IR-848220111FRA](#))

SECTION 3. [848 IAC 7-1-3](#) IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

[848 IAC 7-1-3](#) Recovery monitoring agreement requirements for participants

Authority: [IC 25-23-1-7](#)

Affected: [IC 25-23-1-31](#)

Sec. 3. (a) A nurse participating in ISNAP must execute and abide by the terms of an RMA. The RMA shall identify the requirements and responsibilities of the parties to the agreement.

(b) The RMA shall include, but is not limited to, the following:

- (1) The length of time the nurse shall participate in ISNAP.
- (2) The ~~abstinence-based~~ treatment plan to be followed by the nurse.
- (3) The consequences of failure to comply with the ~~abstinence-based~~ treatment plan or other terms of the RMA.
- (4) The restrictions placed on the nurse's activities regarding the practice of nursing and the duration of such restrictions.
- (5) The requirements for monitoring and supervision that must be met by the nurse.
- (6) A statement that will allow the IPLA and the board to do the following:
 - (A) Review the nurse's file for compliance with the RMA.
 - (B) Audit the services provided by ISNAP.
- (7) The releases for seeking information or records related to the nurse's impairment from the following:
 - (A) Family.
 - (B) Peers.

- (C) Medical personnel.
- (D) Employers.
- (E) Treatment providers.
- (8) A statement that costs accruing to the nurse, including, but not limited to, treatment and body fluid screens, shall:
 - (A) be the responsibility of the nurse; and
 - (B) not be the responsibility of ISNAP.
- (9) The fee to be assessed to the nurse for participation in the program, including the following:
 - (A) The fee assessed for all participants, if any.
 - (B) An additional fee that may be assessed if the nurse is terminated or otherwise released from the program and then readmitted.
 - (C) An additional fee that may be assessed if the length of the nurse's RMA is extended.
- (10) Any other information related to the rehabilitation and monitoring of the nurse.

(Indiana State Board of Nursing; [848 IAC 7-1-3](#); filed Jan 23, 2006, 8:35 a.m.: 29 IR 1928; readopted filed Nov 9, 2012, 11:23 a.m.: [20121205-IR-848120387RFA](#); readopted filed Dec 14, 2018, 2:43 p.m.: [20190109-IR-848180373RFA](#); filed Mar 6, 2023, 9:05 a.m.: [20230405-IR-848220111FRA](#))

SECTION 6. [848 IAC 7-1-6](#) IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

[848 IAC 7-1-6](#) Recovery monitoring agreement requirements; additional program requirements

Authority: [IC 25-23-1-7](#)

Affected: [IC 16-39](#); [IC 25-23-1-31](#)

Sec. 6. (a) ISNAP shall monitor each nurse's participation in the rehabilitation monitoring program for compliance with the program.

(b) The treatment plan referenced in the RMA must be ~~abstinence-based~~ **evidence based**.

(c) Monitoring shall include the following, as each applies to the individual nurse's treatment plan:

(1) Treatment and therapy:

- (A) recommendations; **and**
- (B) participation;

including aftercare.

(2) Participation in ~~an abstinence-based~~ a support group.

(3) Professional support group participation.

(4) Work activities, including the following:

- (A) Return-to-work issues for all participants.
- (B) Ongoing monitoring of work performance and compliance with restrictions or limitations imposed by the program contract or the board.

(5) Random drug testing.

(6) A determination by ISNAP whether or not the nurse shall be terminated from participation in the program for failure to comply with program requirements.

(d) In addition to subsection (a), ISNAP may monitor each nurse for compliance in family treatment and special treatment, including, but not limited to, the following if those treatments are included in the individual nurse's treatment plan:

- (1) Pain management.
- (2) Psychiatric treatment.
- (3) Psychological treatment.

(e) ISNAP:

(1) shall report to the board the name and license number of a nurse that has failed to comply with the provisions of the rehabilitation and monitoring program and the circumstances surrounding the failure to comply;

(2) may release information to the board or to the consumer protection division of the office of the attorney general, in compliance with:

- (A) [IC 25-23-1-31](#); and

(B) all applicable state and federal confidentiality laws and regulations.

(f) ISNAP shall, upon the written request of the nurse, purge participant records provided that no additional occurrences of alcohol or other drug related violations have been reported to the board over a period of seven (7) years from the nurse's last use of alcohol or other drugs, under [IC 16-39](#). ISNAP may purge records after seven (7) years as provided for in [IC 16-39](#).

(g) After a nurse has completed the RMA period, upon the nurse's request, the nurse will be permitted to voluntarily sign a subsequent agreement for an additional period of time. The nurse is directly responsible for the cost of all monitoring conducted by ISNAP. The cost of monitoring of these individuals shall not be assessed to the board.

(Indiana State Board of Nursing; [848 IAC 7-1-6](#); filed Jan 23, 2006, 8:35 a.m.: 29 IR 1929; readopted filed Nov 9, 2012, 11:23 a.m.: [20121205-IR-848120387RFA](#); readopted filed Dec 14, 2018, 2:43 p.m.: [20190109-IR-848180373RFA](#); filed Mar 6, 2023, 9:05 a.m.: [20230405-IR-848220111FRA](#))

LSA Document #22-111(F)

Notice of Intent: [20220330-IR-848220111NIA](#)

Proposed Rule: [20220511-IR-848220111PRA](#)

Hearing Held: September 15, 2022

Approved by Attorney General: February 23, 2023

Approved by Governor: March 3, 2023

Filed with Publisher: March 6, 2023, 9:05 a.m.

Documents Incorporated by Reference: None Received by Publisher

Small Business Regulatory Coordinator: Alyssa D. Servies, Board Director, Indiana State Board of Nursing, Professional Licensing Agency, Indiana Government Center South, 402 West Washington Street, Room W072, Indianapolis, IN 46204, (317) 234-1990, aservies@pla.in.gov

Posted: 04/05/2023 by Legislative Services Agency

An [html](#) version of this document.